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CIWIL COVER SHEET ATIACHMENT 

Plaintiff: 

Angela Allen, 1801 Ridgeview Court, ~arlin, NJ, 08859 

Defendants: 

Represented by: 

The Kim Law Firm, LLC 
Richard Kim, Esquire 

Attorney 1.0. No.: 202618 
1500 Market St. 

Centre Square - West Tower 
Suite W-3110 Philadelphia, 
PA 19102 Ph. 855-996-6342 

Fax 855-235-5855 
rkim@thekimlawfirmllc.com 

Kevin J. Kotch, Esquire 
Attorney 1.0. No.: 70116 
Ferrara law Group, P.C. 
One State Street Square 

50 W State St., Suite 1100 
Trenton, NJ 08608 
609.571.3742 (Tel) 
609.498.7440 (Fax) 

kevin@ferraralawgp.com 

Trans Union, LLC, 1510 Chester Pike,ICrum Lynne, PA 19022 
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,, IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

. FOR THE EtSTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

CASE MANAGEMENT TRACK DESIGNATION FORM 

Angela Allen, on behalf of herself and alll others similarly 
situated, Plaintiff CIVIL ACTION 

v. 
Trans Union, LLC, Defendant 18 

NO. 
649 

In accordance with the Civil Justice Expense and Delay Reduction Plan of this court, counsel for 
plaintiff shall complete a Case M<{nagement Track Designation Form in all civil cases at the time of 
filing the complaint and serve a copy on all defendants. (See § 1 :03 of the plan set forth on the reverse 
side of this form.) In the event ~hat a defendant does not agree with the plaintiff regarding said 
designation, that defendant shall, fith its first appearance, submit to the clerk of court and serve on 
the plaintiff and all other parties, ~ Case Management Track Designation Form specifying the track 
to which that defendant believes the case should be assigned. 
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SELECT ONE OF THE FOLL(i)WING CASE MANAGEMENT TRACKS: 
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(a) Habeas Corpus - Cases brought under 28 U.S.C. § 2241 through§ 2255. 

(b) Social Security - Cases requelting review of a decision of the Secretary of Health 
and Human Services denying ~laintiff Social Security Benefits. 

(c) Arbitration - Cases required tb be designated for arbitration under Local Civil Rule 53.2. 

(d) Asbestos - Cases involving clllaims for personal injury or property damage from 
exposure to asbestos. 

(e) Special Management- Cases 1that do not fall into tracks (a) through (d) that are 
commonly referred to as complex and that need special or intense management by 
the court. (See reverse side of this form for a detailed explanation of special 
management cases.) I 
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( ) 

( ) 
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(f) Standard Management - Cases that do not fall into any one of the other tracks. 

02/1412018 ~ /[_ • _R_i_ch_a_rd_K_im __ ......---,....,..,.....--
Date !Attorney-at-law Attorney for Plamtiff 

855-996-6342 855-235-5855 rkim@thekimlawfirmllc.com 
I, 

Telephone FAX Number E-Mail Address 

(Civ. 660) 10/02 

.FEB 14 201'8 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR 
I. 

THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

I 

Angela Allen, on behalf of hersllf and all 
others similarly situated 

PLAINTIFF, 

v. 

Trans Union, LLC. 

DEFENDANT. 

I 

Civil Action No. 4 8 _:f 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

649 

Plaintiff Angela A lien (" 111en" or" Plaintif!"), by and through her undersigned attorneys, 

on behalf of herself, and the Pu~ative Class set forth below, and in the public interest, hereby 

brings the following class actiol Complaint against Defendant Trans Union, LLC ("TU" or 

"Defendant") pursuant to the F aij Credit Reporting Act, I 5 U.S. C. § 1681, et seq. (the "F CRA"). 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

1. This is a consumerlclass action based on the widespread violations of the FCRA by 

Defendant TU for failing to provide consumers with a revised consumer report that is based upon 

the consumer's file as that file is rLised as a result of an investigation. 

2. 1 ndeed, pursuant t1 Section 1681 i( a)( 6)(B )(ii) of the FCRA, a con sumer reporting 

agency such as TU must provider consumer report that is based upon the consumer's file as that 

file is revised as a result of the reinvestigation." 1 (emphasis added.) 

3. TU repeatedly and I systematically issues credit reports (i.e, consumer reports) that 

The term investigation anq reinvestigation are synonymous under the FCRA. 

1 
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are not revised based on the results of an investigation and includes information that is supposed 

to be deleted from consumer files. 

4. This failure to adhle to the FCRA results in the dissemination of false information 

to consumers about the status of tll.eir credit reports. 

5. Additionally, the clntinued reporting of the inaccurate information (i.e., failing to 

remove deleted trade lines) in Plj;ntiff's credit report have caused Plaintiff and Class Members 

further concrete harm through the l~nclusion of false information. 

6. Accordingly, on be~alf of herself and the Putative Class proposed herein, Plaintiff 

seeks statutory damages, punitive rmages, costs and attorneys' fees, equitable relief, and all other 

appropriate relief pursuant to the IFCRA. 

PARTIES 

7. Individual and representative Plaintiff Angela Allen is a resident of Parlin, New 

Jersey. Ms. Allen is a member of lhe Putative Class defined below and is a consumer as that term 

is defined by applicable law, inclu!ding but not limited to the FCRA. 

8. Defendant TU is albusiness entity that regularly conducts business in the Eastern 

District of Pennsylvania, with a tincipal place of business located at 1510 Chester Pike, Crum 

Lynne, Pennsylvania 19022. TU ts a "person" as that term is defined by the FCRA. 

JlTRISDICTION AND VENUE 

9. Venue is proper I in the United States District Court, Eastern District of 

Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) as Defendant engages in substantial 

business activity in the district an~ a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the 

claim occurred within the district.I 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b). 

2 
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10. TU maintains a principal place of business in the District, does substantial business 

in the District, and is subject to pJrsonal jurisdiction in the District. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

I 

11. TU is one of the Tig three" credit reporting agencies and is required to comply 

with the FCRA. As a credit reworting agency, the United States Congress ("Congress") has 

determined that TU and other crJit reporting agencies "have assumed a vital role in assembling 

and evaluating consumer credit ajd other information." 15 U.S.C. § 1681(a). 

12. If a consumer findsl inaccurate information on their credit reports, the FCRA allows 

that information to be disputed b1 a consumer. Following a dispute, a credit reporting agency is 

required to engage in an investigation of the disputed information to determine whether the 

information is accurate. 15 U.S.C.I § 1681i(a). 

13. Following the investigation, if information is found to be inaccurate, a credit 

reporting agency can change a cojsumer' s credit report by deleting the disputed information when 

appropriate. 

14. However, TU hasl been issuing contradicting information following consumer 

disputes. Specifically, TU will r~port in its investigative results that the disputed trade line is 

deleted, but provide a consumer !disclosure (i.e., credit report) still containing the purportedly 

deleted information. This wrongd~ing violates Section 1681 i(a)(6)(B)(ii) of the FCRA, and results 

in a concrete informational harm bl misinforming consumers as to the true status of their consumer 

report. 

15. Indeed, Plaintiff las subject to this very treatment. Plaintiff's TU credit report 

contained three different collectioms account trade lines regarding medical debt that did not belong 

to her. 

3 
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16. After Plaintiff dis~uted the debt with TU, investigative results (the "Investigative 

Results") dated September 18, 20117, were sent to Plaintiff, and represented that the medical debt 

for the three disputed trade lines would be "Deleted" from Ms. Allen's credit report. 

17. Although the Invjtigative Results stated that the collections accounts would be 

"Deleted", the accompanying crJit report contradicted the Investigative Results, and two of the 

three collections accounts remainL. 

18. The failure of TU t provide P la inti ff with a revised consumer report that is based 

upon the investigation is the quintessential definition of a concrete informational harm; and 

violates Section 1681 i(a)(6)(B)(iiJ of the FCRA. 

19. Additionally, the cbntinued reporting of the inaccurate information (i.e., failing to 

remove deleted trade lines) in PJntiff's credit report cause Plaintiff and Class Members further 

concrete harm through the inclusiln of false information. 

20. At all times pertiJent hereto, Defendant was acting by and through its agents, 

servants or employees who were alting within the course and scope of their agency or employment, 

and under the direct supervision ahd control of the Defendant. 

21. At all times pertinlnt hereto, the conduct of the Defendant, as well as that of its 

agents, servants or employees, wal intentional, willful, reckless, and in grossly negligent disregard 

for federal and state laws and the tghts of the Plaintiff. 

I 

22. Because of Defendant's conduct, the Plaintiff and members of the Putative Class 

have suffered concrete injuries fol: which they are entitled relief. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

23. Plaintiff asserts hisl claim in Count One individually and on behalf of the "FCRA 

Unrevised Consumer Report Class" defined as follows: 

4 
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FCRA Unrevised Consumer Report Class. All persons within the 
United States who: (1) disputed the accuracy of any information on 
a credit report; (2} resulting in Defendant providing notice of the 
investigation of thel'. dispute that the disputed item would be deleted; 
and (3) Defendant providing to the person a consumer report still 
containing the pufRortedly deleted information. 

24. Numerosity. ThJ members of the Putative Class are so numerous that the 

individual joinder of all its mem,ers is impracticable. While the exact number and identities of 

the members of the Putative Class are unknown to Plaintiff at this time, and can only be ascertained 

through appropriate discovery, PlLntiff is informed and believes that the Putative Class includes 

thousands of members, which can I be ascertained by the records maintained by Defendant. 

25. Typicality. Plaintiff and members of the Putative Class were harmed by the acts 

of Defendant in at least the foUowing way: Defendant routinely issued false and unrevised 

consumer reports despite informJg consumers that disputed trade lines were deleted. The FCRA 

violations suffered by Plaintiff are rpical of those suffered by other members of the Putative Class, 

and Defendant treated Plaintiff consistent with other members of the Putative Class. 

26. Adequacy. Plain1ff is an adequate representative of the Putative Class. As a 

person who was informed that the disputed information within her consumer report was deleted 

but was later provided with a cJdit report that still contained purportedly deleted information, 

Plaintiff's interests are aligned wJh, and are not antagonistic to the interests of the members of the 

Putative Class. Plaintiff has retailed counsel competent and experienced in complex class action 

litigation. 

27. Commonality. Cdmmon questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the 

Putative Class and predominate ~ver any questions solely affecting individual members of the 

Putative Class, including but not limited to: 

5 
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a. Whether Defendant issued consumer reports that contained disputed information 

that was claimed J have been deleted pursuant to Defendant's investigation of the 

I dispute by the consumer; 

b. Whether Defendanl's actions violated the FCRA by issuing consumer reports that 

contained disputed I information that was claimed to have been deleted pursuant to 

Defendant's investigation of the dispute by the consumer; 

c. The proper measur~ of statutory and punitive damages; and 

d. The proper form oi injunctive and declaratory relief. 

28. The case is maintainable as a class action under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(l) because 

I 

prosecution of actions by or against individual members of the Putative Class would result in 

inconsistent or varying adjudicati1ns and create the risk of incompatible standards of conduct for 

Defendant. Further, adjudication! of each individual Class member's claim as a separate action 

would potentially be dispositive If the interest of other individuals not a party to such action, 

impeding their ability to protect tlieir interests. 

29. The case is maintjinable as a class action under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2) because 

Defendant has acted or refused to let on grounds that apply generally to the Putative Class, so that 

final injunctive relief or correspoiding declaratory relief is appropriate respecting the Class as a 

whole. 

30. Class certification! is also appropriate under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3) because 

questions of law and fact common to the Putative Class predominate over any questions affecting 

I. 

only individual members of the Putative Class, and because a class action is superior to other 

available methods for the fair aJ efficient adjudication of this litigation. Defendant's conduct 

described in this Complaint stemJ from common and uniform policies and practices, resulting in 

6 
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common violations of the FCRA. Members of the Putative Class do not have an interest in 

pursuing separate actions againstliDefendant, as the amount of each Class member's individual 

claims is small compared to the rxpense and burden of individual prosecution, and Plaintiff is 

unaware of any similar pending claims brought against Defendant by any members of the Putative 

Class on an individual basis. Clals certification also will obviate the need for unduly duplicative 

1. . . h . h 1 . . I . . d . D .{:'. d , . M 1tigat10n t at m1g t resu t m mcons1stent JU gment concemmg e1en ant s practices. oreover, 

management of this action as a cl{•s action will not present any likely difficulties. In the interests 

of justice and judicial efficiency, it would be desirable to concentrate the litigation of all Putative 

Class member's claims in a singlJ forum 

31. Plaintiff intends to !provide notice to all members of the Putative Class to the extent 

required by Rule 23. The name and addresses of the Putative Class members are available from 

Defendant's records. 

CAUSES OF ACTION 

COUNT ONE 

(Asserted on behalf of Plaintiff and the FCRA Unrevised Consumer Report Class) 

Violatiln of the Fair Credit Reporting Act 

15 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq. 

32. Plaintiff incorpor~tes by reference all other allegations and paragraphs of the 

Complaint as if set forth herein atllength. 

33. Plaintiff is a "consumer" as defined by the FCRA. 

I 
34. TU is a "person" a~ defined by the FCRA. 

35. Defendant's condJt violates 15 U.S.C. § 1681i(a)(6)(B)(ii) by issuing a consumer 

reported that is not revised as a re~ult of the Defendant's investigation of a disputed trade line. 

7 
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36. The foregoing violation was willful. TU knew that it was required to issue revised 

· d f I ·d· ct· · · -C' • d d · consumer reports, mstea o pr,v1 mg contra ictmg m1ormat10n to consumers, an acte m 

deliberate or reckless disregard pf its obligations and the rights of Plaintiff and other Class 

members. 

3 7. Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to statutory damages of not less than $100 and 

not more than $1,000 for each land every one of these violations, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 

168ln(a)(l)(A). 

38. Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to punitive damages for these violations, pursuant 

to 15 U.S.C. § 168ln(a)(2). 

39. Plaintiff and the Cllass are further entitled to recover their costs and attorneys' fees, 

pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)~3). 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

40. WHEREFORE, Pl~intiff, on behalf of herself and the Putative Classes, prays for 

relief as follows: 

a. Determining that the action may proceed as a class action under Rule 23 of the 

Federal Rules Jf Civil Procedure; 

b. Designating PlLntiff as class representative and designating Plaintiff's counsel 

I: 
as counsel for ~e Putative Class; 

c. Issuing proper hotice to the Putative Class at Defendant's expense; 

.I 
d. Declaring that Defendant violated the FCRA; 

e. Declaring that refendant acted willfully in deliberate or reckless disregard of 

Plaintiff's righ1is and its obligations under the law; 

f. Awarding appf opriate equitable relief, including, but not limited to an 

8 
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41. 

injunction forbiidding Defendant from engaging in further unlawful conduct; 

g. Awarding statutory damages and punitive damages as provided by the law; 

h. Awarding reastable attorneys' fees and costs as provided under the law; and 

i. Granting any other relief, in law or equity, as the Court may deem appropriate 

and just. 

DiEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiff demands Jial by jury on all issues so triable. 

Respectfully submitted, 

THE KIM LAW FIRM, LLC 

BY: Isl Richard H Kim (RHK 8964) 
Richard Kim, Esquire 
Attorney I.D. No.: 202618 
Centre Square - West Tower 
Suite W-3110 
Philadelphia, PA 19102 
Ph. 855-996-6342/Fax 855-235-5855 
rkim@thekimlawfirmllc.com 

Kevin J. Kotch, Esquire 
Attorney I.D. No.: 70116 
Ferrara Law Group, P.C. 
One State Street Square 
50 W State St., Suite 1100 
Trenton, NJ 08608 
609.571.3742 (Tel) 
609.498.7440 (Fax) 
kevin@ferraralawgp.com 

Attorneys for Plaintiff Angela Allen 

Dated: February 14, 2018 
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ClassAction.org
This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this 
post: Class Action Claims Trans Union Fails to Provide Consumers with Revised Reports

https://www.classaction.org/news/class-action-claims-trans-union-fails-to-provide-consumers-with-revised-reports

